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July 12, 2023 
 
The Urban Forestry Commission (UFC) — which exists (ordinance 123052) to advise the Mayor and city 
Council on policy and regulations governing the protection, management, and conservation of trees and 
vegetation in the City of Seattle — discussed the SDCI Director’s Rule 7-2023 and SDCI Director’s Rule 8-
2023 during its July 12th public meeting and has the following comments and recommendations. 
 
General feedback 
In both Director’s Rules, tree categories are referred to only with Tier numbers (e.g., Tier 1 trees). The 
use of Tier numbers is new and does not allow for alignment with previous code. The commission has 
recommended in the past, and continues to recommend, the simultaneous use of both the new Tier 
number designation and the previous named designation (e.g., Tier 1 – Heritage trees). This practice will 
reduce confusion and enable people comfortable with either system to understand the rule. 
 
The approaches set forth in both Director’s Rules for defining Tier 2 – Exceptional Trees and setting in 
lieu fees for replacing trees do not account for the context of the tree — its health, location, 
surroundings, etc. For example, a healthy tree in an area with low canopy cover is highly valuable, 
regardless of its size. Such highly valuable trees should be considered Tier 2 – Exceptional Trees and 
should require greater in lieu replacement costs. The International Society of Arboriculture has a Guide 
for Plant Appraisal1 that takes context into consideration for evaluating the value of trees. The UFC 
recommends following these guidelines (or at least using them as a framework) for defining Tier 2 – 
Exceptional Trees and for setting in lieu fees.  
 
Director’s Rule 7-2023 – Tier 2 Trees 
 
In line with the general feedback above, the UFC recommends amending the subject section to read 
“Designation of Tier 2 Trees – Exceptional Trees”. 

The UFC did not understand the reasons behind the two sets of exceptions outlined in the rule. 
Specifically, why are Red alder (Alnus rubra), black cottonwood (Populus trichocarpa), Lombardy poplar 
(Populus nigra ‘Italica’), and bitter cherry (Prunus emarginata) never considered Tier 2 – Exceptional 
Trees, regardless the size measured at DSH? Commissioners and public attendees at the July 12th 
meeting had multiple examples of these trees species serving important roles within the city. This 
situation points to the need to fully consider the context of the tree (as discussed above) rather than 
just its size.   

Similarly, why are the species Black locust – (Robinia pseudoacacia), Harlequin (prev. Norway) maple – 
(Acer platanoides), and Horse chestnut – (Aesculus hippocastanum), which are listed on the King County 
Noxious Weed List, not to be considered an invasive tree or nuisance tree? There seems to be a  
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disconnect in the perceived value of these trees between the Noxious Weed Board and the City of 
Seattle.  

The UFC notes that trees in tree groves should be considered Tier 2-Exceptional trees. The rule should, 
but does not, address tree groves. 
 
Director’s Rule 8-2023 – Payment in Lieu 
 
The UFC recommends setting in lieu fees using the “Functional Replacement Method Trunk Formula 
Technique” devised by International Society of Arboriculture and available as a worksheet2 in the Guide 
for Plant Appraisal. The worksheet is appended to this letter. It takes into account the size of the trees 
as well as its species, health, and other contextual aspects. It considers the nursery cost of buying a 
similar tree species at the nursery, and the clean-up, planting, and aftercare costs. This approach would 
follow best practices set forward by the arboriculture community and more accurately reflect the value 
of each tree. 
 
In general, the UFC feels that the in lieu fees are not large enough to incentivize retention of existing 
trees, which is the most effective way to grow canopy cover and reach the canopy cover goal of 30% set 
forward by the city. Further, the fees are not large enough to actually cover costs the city will take on for 
planting and caring for replacement trees. Seattle Parks and Recreation estimates the cost is close to 
$4,000 to plant and establish a single tree. The current fee set for Tier 3 – “Significant” Trees is well 
below $4,000, which means that public money will be spent on replacing these trees cut down during 
private development. Finally, when the city cuts down a tree on public land, it is required to replace it 
with three additional trees. The UFC believes that private development should be held to the same 
standard as the city. Thus, in lieu fees should be set to enable a 3 to 1 replacement.  
 
The UFC found this rule poorly communicated and recommends altering the language to make it more 
clear. Specifically, the use of “Cost per square inch2 of trunk for each tree removed” is confusing. The 
phrasing suggests surface area of the tree, which would involve tree height. It is only after digging 
deeper into the rule and studying the footnote does it become clear that what is actually meant is cross-
sectional area of the trunk, presumably at breast height. A possible rephrasing is “cost per square inch of 
trunk cross-section area measured at breast height for each tree removed.” 
 
The UFC recommends providing an exemption or waiver for in lieu fees to affordable housing and 
community development projects using public funds. In this context, paying the in lieu fee would simply 
shift public money allocated to development — which is already limited —toward planting trees. 
However, the UFC strongly supports maintaining and growing tree canopy in low-income neighborhoods 
and believes that these communities deserve a robust tree canopy. Therefore, we suggest incentivizing 
tree retention in publicly funded development projects by means other than in lieu fees.  
 
Thank you for your serious consideration of these recommendations. The UFC is open to addressing any 
questions or concerns that arise from these comments. 
 
Sincerely, 
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